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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

COVERNOR'S OFFICE

I.INDA JEAN RICHARDS,
© Complainant

VS. : DOCKET NO. E-5611-P

MILLCREEK SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND JOHN SANDEL, SUPERIN-
TENDENT,

Respondents

HISTORY OF THE CASE, FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, COMMISSION'S DECISION AND
FINAL ORDER

HISTORY OF THE CASE

on March 5, 1973, Linda Jean Richards filed a complaint
with the Pennsylvania Human Relations commission at Docket
No. E-5611-P alleging that Millcreek school District and John

Sandel,'Superintendent, refused to compensate her with egqual

supplemental wages as coach of the Girls' Varsity Tennis

Team while granting the male coach of the Boys' Varsity Tennis
Team a supplemental wage $300.00/$310.00 higher than Com-
plainant for performing a substantially same OT similar job.
Complainant further alleged that Respondents discriminate
against women as a class in the payment of supplemental wages
to female coaches and the amount of varsity sports offered
female students, pecause of their sex, female. On September
By 1973, the complaint was amended to allege a continuing
violation. Complainant alleged that these actions violate
section 5(a) of the Pennsylvania'Human Relations Act, Act of
October 27, 1955, P.L. 744, as amended, 43 P.S. Section 951

EE seq.



An investigation into the allegations contained in the
complaint was made by repreéentatives of the Commission and a‘
determination was made that probable cause existed to credit
the allegations of the complaint. Thereupon, the Commissidn
endeavored to eliminate the unlawful practices complained of
by conference, conciliation and'persuasion. These endeavors
were unsuccessful and, pursuant to Section 9 of the Pehnsyl—
vania Human Relations Act, on July 29, 1975, a hearing on
the merits of the complaint was convened in Erie before
Commissioners Wisniewski, Donovan and Scott.

The Hearing Panel upon coﬁsideration of all of the
testimony presented before it by both parties recommended that

the Commission find in favor of the Cemplainant.




FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Complainant herein is Linda Jean ﬁichards, a
female teacher, who resides at 2659 West Sixth Street, Erie.

2. -The Respondent herein is Millcreek School District,
Complainant's employer. A second Respondent is John Sandel,
Superintendent. No testimony was presented concerning- Mr.
Sandel. All references to the Respondent are to Millcreek
School District.

3. Complainant has been employed as a teacher by the
Respondent at McDowell High School since 1968 (T. 7). For
three years, from the fall of 1968 through the spring of 1971,
Complainant served as the Coach of the Girls' Tennis Team at

McDowell High School when it was an extramural team (T: 73

9, c-1; 10).

4. The Girls' Tennis Team became a varsity team as op-
posed to an extramural team in the 1971-72 sqhool year (T. 29).

5. The Boys' Varsity Tennis Team has been in existence
for ten to fifteen years (T. 47).

6. Kay Dennis was the first (Head) Coach of the Girls'
Varsity Tennis Team in 1971-72 (T. 8, 29-30). She scheduled
eleven matches during the fall and spring of that school
year (T. 65, D=5 . -

7. Complainant applied for and received the position -of
Girls' Varsity Tennis (Head) Coach for the 1972-73 and 1973-74
sphobtl yeatrs (T 103 11, C-3p 13, C-5).

| 8. Compiainant did not receive credit for her three years
of coaching the extramural team (T. 10).

‘9. Complainant's salary as Girls' Varsity Tennis (Heéd)
Coach was significantly less than the salary of the male head
coach of the Boys' Varsity Tenpis Team. Complainant received
$250 for her first year as bpposed to $550 for a first year male
coach, a difference of $300.  Complainant received $320 for
her second year as opposed to $630 for a second year male

coach, a difference of $310 (T. 11; 12, c-3; 25-6, D-2, 3).
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10. Complainant objected tao the salary difference Lo the
School Board and was denied an equalization of salary (T. 10,
1d; C-2¥;

11. Complainant indicated in writing her continued protest

" over the unequal salary when she signed her contract for the 1972

73 school year (T. L., 12, C—3),

12, " All.of Coﬁplainant's coaching dutieé were listed in
the Coaches' Handbook (r. 13, 14, c-4).

13. The duties of all of the Head Coaches, both male and \
female, were the same. 21l duties were listéd on page two oif \
the Coaches' Handbook (T. 43,-45, c-4). Ronald L. Manchester, 1
Supervisor of Physical Fducation and Athletics, responding for E
Respondent, told the Commission's Investigator, Kathleen Guinn, E
that the Head Coach had no duties other than those set forth |
on pagertwo of the Coaches' Handbook (%. 46) .

14, Coaches had many other duties in addition to the.actual
playing of competitive matches (T. 70, C-4).

L15. Complainant arranged the tennis matches for the 1.9 Fi=
23 achool year (T. 15, 31).

16. In 1972-73 when Complainant scheduled the tennis mat-
ches, the Girls' vVarsity Tennis Team played twenty-two matches
(7. 14, 31). gix matches werge played in the fall arnd sixteen
matches were played in the spring (T. 33) .

17. Of the eight teams with whom matches were scheduled
in 1972-73, three were played twice, four were played three
times and one was played-four times (D-4).

18. Only three matches, those against Behrend College,

would not have been sanctioned under p.I.A.A. rules (T. 32-3, D—4A.

19. Ronald L. Manchester, Supervisor of Physical Education \

and Athletics, scheduled the tennis matches for the 1973-74

achool year (T. 17 L8)a
20. At Complainant's urging, Mr. Manchester contacted all
of the [tennis] coaches in the area ih the spring of 1973. As

a result of this meeting, a five-school league was set up. \



l
“ League play started in the fall of 1973 (B« 18).
\ 21. In 1973-74 when Mr. Manchester scheduled the
\ tennis matches, the Girls' Varsity Tennis Team played only
% ten matches. Eight matches, twb with each league member,
B \ were played in the fall and two| matches, the district and state

championship competitions were played in the spring (T. 18,

|
|
\ 34.
\ 22. All matches played in the 1973-74 school year were
\ authorized P.I.A.A. matches.

$3. ‘Othex schools play girlS' varsity tennis inrboth the
fall and the spring; some plaﬁ only in the spring (T.ﬁlS).
The championship matches are held in the spring (T. 34) .

24. 1In the 1972-73 school year, Cqmplainant gcheduled
matches in both the fall and the spriné (r. 14, 33).

25. Ronald L. Manchester scheduled all of the League
matches for the Girls” Vafsity Tennis Team in the fall (T. 18,
34).

26. Complainant agreed to go along with the seasonl that
Mr. Manchester, the Supervisor of Physical Education and
Athletics, selected (T. 34-34) .

27. Participation in varsity tennis Ey girls and boys
was approximately the same. The estimated participation.
of students in varsity tennis for 1973-74 shows that there
were sixteen girls and fifteen boys on the varsity tennis
teams (C-6).

2g8. Both the Head Coach of the Boys' Varsity Basketball
Team and the Head coach of the Girls' Varsity Basketball
Team had the same duties. The duties were described on page
two of the coaches' Handbook (T. 45, C-4).

29. The Boys' Varsity Basketball Team usually plays twenty-
i two games per seasoOll. The Girls' Varsity Pasketball Team
\ usually plays fifteen games per season (c-6) .

i \- 30. Participation in varsity basketball by girls and boys
| was similar. The estimated participation of students in var-

sity'baskétball for 1973-74 shows that there were twelve girls



and sixteen boys on the Varsity Basketball Team (C-6).

31. The salary of the feﬁale Head Basketball Coach was
significantly less than the salary of the male Head Basketball
Coach. The female coach received from $250 to $400 as opposed
to the male coach who received from $1,300 to0.$1,900, a differ-
ence of $1,050 to $1,500.

32/ As a result of Respondent's unlawful sex discrimination,
women coaches earned significantly less than their male counter-

parts (D-2, 3).

33. As a result of Respondent's unlawful sex discrimination,

Complainant suffered a loss of earnings of $610.00 which was de-
termined_aS'followsi
a. 1972-73 - $300.00, the difference between
the salary of a first year head coach of
the girls' tennis team and the salary of
a first year head coach of the boys' tennis
team (D-2).
b. - 1973-74 - $310.00, the difference between
the salary of a second year head coach of
the girls' tennis team and the salary of

a second year head coach of the boys'

tennis team (D-3).




CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

I. 'The Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission has
jurisdiction over the Complainant, the Respondents and the-
subject matter of the complaint under the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Act, Act of October 27, 1955, P.L. 744;
as amended, 43 P.S. Section 951 et seq.

2. Respondent Millcreek School District's compensation'
of Complainant as coach of the Girls' Varsity Tennis Team Dby
a supplemental wage that was substantially less than the
compensation paid the male tennis coach for performing a
substantially similar job because of her seX, female, con-
gstitutes a violation of gection 5(a) of the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Act. §

3. Respondent Millcreek School District}s compensation
of all female coaches by a supplemental wage that was sub-
stantially less than the compensation paid their male counter-
parts for performing a substantially same or similar Jjob
because of thelir seX; female, constitutes a violation of
Section 5(a) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act.

4. The complaint does not cite the section of the Penn-
sylvania Huyman Relations Act that the gespondent allegedly
violated by not offering female students the amount of varsity
sports offered male students, because of their seX, female;
Because of thie deficiency, this final allegation mﬁst be
dismissed.

5. No case wWas presented against Respondent John Sandel,
Superintendent; therefore, the complaint against him must be

dismissed.



RECOMMENnATION OF HEARING-COMMISSIONERS

AND NOW, this day of , 1976, upon
consideration of all the evidence presented at the Public
Hearing on the above'matter, the arguments e£|Counsel and
the proposed History of the Case;, Findings of Fact and
Conclusions ef Law, the Hearing Commissioners recommend o
the entire Commission that an Order be,entered against the
Respondent Millcreek School pistrict holding. it in violation
of Section 5(a) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act and
providing for appropriate relief. The Hearing Commissioners
further recommend that the complaint against Respondent John

gandel be dismissed because no case was presented against him.

!

ol e

John P. Wwisniewski
Presiding Commissioner

I R S

gister Mary Dennis Donova
Hearing'Commissioner

e e

Elizabeth M. Scott
. Hearing Commissioner

(8)



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
PENNSYLVANTA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

GOVERNOR'S OFFICE

LINDA JEAN RICHARDS,

"Complainant

vSs. s DOCKET NO. E-5611-P

- MILLCREEK SCHOOL DISTRICT,

AND JOHN SANDEL, SUPERIN-
TENDENT,
Respondents

FINAL ORDER

AND NOW, this day of i 1976, upon
consideration of the foregéing Historyrof the Case, Findings‘
of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and the Commission's Decision
and pursuant to Section 9 of the Pennsylvania Human Relations

Act, as amended, the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission

hereby
O RDERS:

1. Respondent Millcreek School District shall cease and
desist from discriminating on the basis of sex in the amount
of supplemental wages paid to Complainant, Linda Jean Richards,
and to all other_feméle coaches.

2. Respondent Millcreek School District shall adjust
the supplemental wages paid to Complainant and to all other
female coaches so that the supplemental wages paid to them are
equal to the supplemental wages paid to their male counterparts.

3. Respondent'Millcreek School District shall pay Com-
plainant, Linda Jean Richards, $610.00, ﬁhe sum representing the
supplemental wages lost by her in the 1972-73 and 1973-74 school
years as a result of her not receiving supplemental wages equal
to those received by the male coach of the Boys' Varsity Tennis
Team, plus simple interest at the rate of six (6) per cent per

year.

-10-




4. Respondent Millcreek School District shall, within

thirty (30) days of the date
Pennsylvania Human Relations
the actions required by this

5. The complaint shall

Sandel.

ATTEST:

of this Order, submit to the
Commission notice and proof that

Order have been performed.

‘be and is dismissed as to John

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS

Elizabeth M. Scott
Secretary

(L1)

COMMISSION

By:
Joseph X. Yaffe
Chairperson




COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMTSSION
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE
LINDA JEAN RICHARDS, :
Complainant . :
v. : . DOCKET NO. E-5611-P
MILLCREEK SCHOOL DISTRICT ,

AND JOHN SANDEL, SUPERINTENDENT,
Respondents

COMMISSION'S DECISION

AND NOW, this 28th day of ‘March , 1976, upon
the recommendation of the Hearihg Commissioners and upon all
the evidence presented at the Public Hearing of this case,

and in consideration of |the History of the Case, the Findings
of Fact and Conclusions |of Law, the Human Relations Commission
finds and determines that Respondent Millcreek School District
engaged in unlawful discriminatory practices in violation of
Section 5(a) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Aét, Act of
October 27, 1955, P.L. 744, as amended, in that Respondeht

Millcreek School District discriminated on the basis of sex in

the amount of supplemental wages paid to Complainant, Linda

Jean Richards, as Head Coach of the Girls' Varsity Team and the

amount of supplemental wages paid to all female coaches, and
further, that the complaint against Respondent John Sandel be
dismissed because no case was presented against him.

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS
COMMISSION

e a ez . J ¥ 1

' Elizapbeth M. Scott : seph X. 77,
- Secrédtary hairpers



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

GOVERNOR'S OFFICE

LINDA JEAN RICHARDS,

T

Complainant

e we

VS. ' : DOCKET NO. E-5611-P

ve

MILLCREEK SCHOOL DISTRICT,
AND JOHN SANDEL, SUPERIN-
TENDENT,

*8 ve ae

Respondent s

FINAL ORDER

AND NOW, this 28th day of March 1976, upon
consideration of the foregéing History of the Case, Findings
of Faét, Conclusions of Law, and the Cbmmission's Decision
and pursuant to Section-9 of the Pennsylvania Human Reiations

Act, as amended, the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission

hereby
©CRDERS:

1. Respondent Millcreek School Disﬁrict shall cease and
desist from discriminating on the basis of 'sex in the amount
of supplemental wages paid to Complainant, Linda Jean Richards,
and to all other female coaches.

2. Respondent Millcreek School District shall adjust
the supplemental wages paid to Complainant and to all cther
female coaches so that the supplementai wages pald to them are
egqual to the supplemental wages paid to their male counterparts.

3. TRespondent Millcreek School‘Disﬁrict shall pay Com="
plainant, Linda Jean Richards, $610.00, the sum représenting the

supplemental wages lost by her in the 1972-73 and 1973-74 school

years as a result of her not receiving supplemental wages equal

to those received by the male coach of the Boys' Varsity Tennis
Team, plus simple interest at the rate of six (6) per cent per

year.

-10-




4. Respondent Millcreek School District shall, within

thirty (30) days of the |date

Pennsylvania Human Relations

. the actions required by this

5. The complaint shall

Sandel.

;%f 4/&’/ o //% HOFTT

of this Order, submit to the
Commission notice and proof that
Order have been performed.

be and is ‘dismissed as to John

PENNSYLVANTA HUMAN RELATIONS
COMMISSION

L?“‘/

ElizAbeth M. Scott
Secretary

(11)

Oseph s aﬁ%e
halrper




" AND JOHN SANDEL, SUPERIN-

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANTIA
PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION
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HISTORY OF THE |[CASE, FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, COMMISSION'S DECISION AND
' FINATL ORDER

HISTORY OF THE CASE

On March 5, 1973, |Linda Jean Richards filed a complaint
with the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission at Docket
No. E-5611-P alleging that Millcreek School District and John
Sandel, Superintendent, refused to compensate her with‘equal
supplemental wages as coach of the Girls' Varsity Tennis
Team while granting the male coach of the Boys' Varsity Tennis
Team a supplemental wage 5$300.00/$310.00 higher than Com-
plainant for performing a substantially same or similar job.
Complainant further alleged that Respondents discriminate
against women as a class in therpayment of supplemental wages
to female coaches and the amount of varsity sports offered
female students, because of their sex, female. On September
5, 1973, the complaint was amended to allege a continuing

violation. Complainant alleged that these actions violate

Section 5(a) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, Act of

October 27, 1955, P.L . 744, as amended, 43 P.S. Section 951

et seq.




An investigation into the allegations contained in the
complaint was made by representatives of the Commission and a
detérmination was made that probable cause existed to credit
the allegations of the complaint. Thereupon, the Commission
endeavored to elimihate the unlawful ?ractices complained of
byrconference, conciligtion and'persuasion. These endeavors
wére unsuccessful and, pursuant to Section 9 of the Pennsyl-
vania Human Relations Act, on July 29, 1975, a hearing on
the merits of the complaint was convened in Erie before
Commiésioners Wisniewski, Donovan and Scott.

The Hearing Panel upon consideration of all of the
testimony presented before it by both parties reéommended that

the Commission find in favor of the Complainant.

|
|




FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Complainant herein is Linda Jean Richards, a
female teacher, who resides at 2659 West Sixth Street, Erie.

2¥ The Respondent herein is Millcreek Sehool District,
Complainant's employer. A second Respondeﬂt is John Sandel,
Superintendent. No testimony was presented concerning Mr.
Sandel. All references to the Respondent are to Millcreek
School District.

3. Complainant has been employed as a teacher by the
Respondent at McDowell High School since 1968 (T. 7). For
three years, from the fall of 1968 through the spring of 1971,
Complainant served as the Coach of the Girls; Tennis Team at
McDowell High School when‘it‘was an ektrémural team (T. 7;

9, C-1; 10).
4. The Girls' Tennis Team became a varsity team as op-
posed to an extramural team in the 1971-72 school vear (T. 29).

5. The prs' Varsity Tennis Team has been in existence
for ten to fifteen years (T. 47).

6. Kay Dennis was the first (Head) Coach of the Girls'
Varsity Tennis Team in 1971-72 (T. 8, 29-30). She scheduled
eleven matches during the fall and spring of that school
year (T. 65, D-6).

7. Complainant applied for and received the position of
Girls' Varsity Tennis (Head) Coach for the 1972-73 and 1973-74
school years (T. 10; 11, C-3; 17, C-5).

8. Complainant did not receive credit for her three years
of coaching the extfamqral team (T. 10) .

9. Complainant's salary as Girls' Varsity Tennis (Head)
Coach was significantly less thén the salary of the male heéd
coach of the Boys' Varsity Tennis Team. Complainant received
$250 for her first year as opposed to $550 for .a first year male
coach, a difference of $300. Complainant received $320 for
her second year as opposed to $630 for a sécond year male

coach, a difference of $310 (T. 11; 12, C-3; 25-6, D-2, 3).

?




League play started in the fall of 1973 (T. 18).
21. 1In 1973-74 when Mr. Manchester scheduled the
tennis matches, the Girls' Varsity Tennis Team played only
ten matches. Eight matches, two with each league member,
were played'in the fall and two.matches, the district and state
championship competitions were played iﬁ the spring (7. 18,
34. |
22. All matches played in the 1973-74 school year were
authorized P.I.A.A. matches. |
23. Other schools play girls' varsity tennis in both the

fall and the spring; some play only in the spring (T. 15).

The champiénship matches| are held in the spring (T. 34).

24. 1In the 1972-73 school year, Complainant Scheduléd
matches in both the fall and the spriné (T, 14, 33).

25. Ronald L. Manchester scheduled all of the League
matches for the Girls' Varsity Tennis Team in the fall (T. 1B,
34).

26. Complainant agreed to go along with the season that
Mr. Manchester, the Supervisor of Physical Education and
Athletics, selected (T. 34-36).

27. Participation in varsity tennis by girls and boys
was approximately the same. The estimated participation

of students in varsity tennis for 1973-74 shows that there

were sixteen girls and fifteen boys on the varsity tennis

teams (C-6).

28. Both the Head Cpach of the Boys' Varsity Basketball
Team and the Head Coach of the Girls' Varsity'Easketball
Team had the same duties. The duties were described on page
two of the Coaches' Handbook (T. 45, C-4).

29. The Boys' Varsity Basketball Team usually plays twenty-
two games per season. The Girls' Varsity Basketball Team
usually plays fifteen games per season (C-6).

30. Participation in varsity basketball by girls and boys
was similar. The estimated pérﬁicipation of students in var=-

sity basketball for 1973-74 shows that therec were twelve girls




and sixteen boys on the Varsity Basketball Team (C-6).
31. The salary of the female Head Basketball Coach was
significantly less than the sélary of the male Head Basketball

Ccach. The female coach|received from $250 to $400 as opposed

“to the male coach who received from $1,300 to $1,900, a differ-

ence of $1,050 to $1,500.-.

32. As a result of Respondent's unlawful sex discrimination,
women coaches earned significantly less than their male counte;—
parts (D~2, 3).

33. As a result bf Respondent's unlawful sex discrimination,
Complainant suffered a loss of earnings of $610.00 which was de-
termined as follows:

a. 1972-73 - $300.00, the difference between -
the salary of a first year head coach of
the girls' tennis team and the salary of
a first year head coach of the bbys‘ tennis
team (D-2).

b. 1973-74 - $310.00, the difference betweeﬂ
the'salary 0of a second year head coach of
the girls' tennis team and the salary of
a second year head coach of the bovs'

tennis team (D-3).




CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission ﬁas
jurisdiction over ﬁhe.Complainant, the Respondents and the
subject matter of the complaint under the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Act, Act of October 27, 1955, P.L.. 744,
as amended, 43 P.S. Section 951 éE ggg.

2. Respondent Millcreek School District's compensation
of Complainant as coach of the Girls' Varsity Tennis Team by
a su?plemental wage that was substantially less than the
compensation paid the male tennis coach for performing a
substantially similar job because of her sex, female, con-
stitutes a violation of Section 5(a) of the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Act.

3. Respondent Millcreek School District's compensation
of all female coaches by a supplemental wage that was sub-
stantially less than the compensation paid their male counter-
parts for performing a | substantially same of similar job
because of their sex, female, constitutes a violation of
Section 5(a) of the Pemnsylvania Human Relafions Act.

4. The complaint does not cite the section of the Penn-
sylvania Human Relations Act that the Respondent allegedly
violated by not offering female students the amount of varsity
sports offéred male students, because of their sex, female.
Because of this deficiency, this final allegation must be
dismissed.

5. ©No case was presented against Respondént John Sandel,
Superintendent; therefore, the complaint against him must be

dismissed.




RECOMMENDATION OF HEARING COMMISSIONERS

AND NOW, this 28th day of March , 1976, upon
|| consideration of all the evidence presented at the Public
{ Hearing on the above matter, the arguments of Counsel and

the proposed History of the Case, Findings of Fact and

Conclusions of Law, the Hearing Commissioners recommend to
the entire Commission that an Order be entered against the

Respondent Millcreek School District holding it in violation

of Section 5(a) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act and

providing for appropriate relief. The Hearing Commissioners

further recommend that the complaint against Respondent John

wi_ o

" John P. Wisniewskil

( Presiding Commissioner

rj o (\/r ‘ .
- et My LSoes Dmrven’
| - U v

! Sister Mary Dennis Donova
Hearing Commissioner

?  eplbeth Y o

Elizabeth M. Scott
Hearing Commissioner

Sandel be dismissed because no case was presented against him.
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IN THE COMMONWIZALTH COUR "
PENNSYILVANIA
T SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF MILLCRILK,
Appellant
V. s NO. 733 C.D. 1976

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA,
PINNSY LVANIA IITUMAN RELATIONS
COMMISSION, ' | :

Appelice :

BLEFORIE: HONORARLT JAMES S. BOWMAN, President Judge
HONORABLIE JAMIES C., CRUMLISH, JR., Judge
HONORABRBILE ROY WILKINSON, JR., Judge
HONORABILE GLIENN B, MENCIER, Judge
HONORABLIY THILEQODORE O. ROGIERS, Judge
HONORARILI GENEVIEVE BLATT, Judge
HONORABLLE RICHARD DIiSALLI, Judge

ARGUED: January 31, 1978




OPINION

Opinion by Judge Crumlish, Jr, : -Filed: June 2, 1978

The sole question before us is whether the Pennsylvania Human Relations
Commission (C‘ommission/Appcllec) has the power to decide a case and issue a
final order requiring affirmative action and the payment of monctary damages on a

Sunday.

Appecllant, The School District of the Townshkip of Millereck, was or;iginally
before us to appeal a decision of the Commission's finding that Appeliant violated
Section 5(a) of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act1 {Act), and ordering Appcllant
to (1) cecase and desist from iis discriminatory practices; (2) adjust its supp]énlental |
wage scales so as to cqualize the wages paid to malp and female athletic coaches;
and (3) reimburse Complainant, Linda Jean Richards, for the loss in supplemental
wages occasioned by its discriminafory acts, Appecllant alleged that the Commission's
findings were .not supported by substantial evidence aﬁd that the Commission's order
was null and void because it was issued on a Sunday in contravention of Section 4 of

‘the Law of 1705 (L.aw), 1 Sm. L. 25, as amended, 44 P, S, §l. We decided in favor

of Appellant by addressing thé,rsubstantial evidence question only and determined
that it was unnecessary to discuss the Sunday Law issuc. Our decision was vacated
by our Suprume Court which held that the Commission's decision was supported
by subsiantial evidence. Appellant now returns to us requesling a disposition of the

Sunday Law issuc,




Appcllant argues that, because the Commission made ils decision and issucd

its order on

2 Sznday, its aclions arc null and void. I-nl making this argumeni, Appelliant

relies on Seciion 4 of the Law of 1705, which states in relevant part:

"$§l. Process not to be served on Sunday

"And be it further cnacted, That no person or persons, upon the

first day of the week, ‘8hall scerve or exccute, or causc to be served

or

Ll . .y -
axecuted, any writy precept, warrani, order, judgment or decrce,

———
LK I ]

; but that the serving of any such writ, precept, warrant, orden

judgment or decree, shall be void, to all intents and purposes what-

1

soever ... o (Emphasis added.)

The Commission responds by stating that the issuance of an order is not

Synonymous

with its exccution and that its actions of Sunday, March 28, 1976,

therefore, do not full within the proscriptions of the Law.

We agree with this technical distinction.

The word "'execute" is a term having different meanings in varying contexts,

It is defined neither by the Act nor the Law. In the abscence of definition, we are

dirccted to ascribe to the word its peculiar and appropriate meaning or definition. 3

Our task then is to determine the meaning of the term as employed in the Law, snd as

it relates to orders of the Commission,

In this context we belicve the most exact definition of the term is the

followsin; definition offered by Black's L.aw Dictionary:

4

- "To fulll]l the purpose of; to obey; Lo perform the

commands of; as o execute a writ, "




For the Commaission's order o ol ::'f:\::--:_uted.@ ils mandatos musi Lo

nerformed. There is no cvidepcee thae doppciant was required to comply w
‘Commission's order on Sunday, March 28, 1975, cor any Sunday trhovesiior, Tndood,
beeause of the appeals taken by Appellant, the Commissionis order remaing whol

exccutory. Our interpretation is further supported by Scction 18 of the Aci, 45 54,

§960, which provides that the Commission must r'ely on the power and authorily of

the courts of this Commonwealth for enforcement of its orders.

Accordingly, we

ORDIER

AND NOW, this 2nd  day of June , 1978, the decisiod of

Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission is affirmed.

CJames C, Crumlish, 9., Judge

-3 - .




Footnotes

+

1 o
Act of October 27, 1955, P. L, 744, as amcended, 43 PP.S. §955(a).

2 N . . .
Even though the Commission committed no legal error in meeting and
issuing its orders on Sunday, we can discern no necessity for Sunday sessions and
admonish the Commission to consider obvious problems this practice prescnis.

3Sec Scction 3(a) of the Statutory Construction Act of 1972, 1 P"eL. C.S.A,
§1903(a). : -

*Black's Law Dictionary 676 (Reviscd 4th ed. 1068).

5Soc‘ci.on 10 of the Act, 43 P.S. §960, rcpealed in part by Scction 508(a)(87)
of the Appellate Court Jurisdiction Act of 1870, Act of July 31, 1970, P, L. 673, as
amended, 17 P.S, §211,508(a), states in relevant part: ] -

'"§ 960, Enforcement and judicial review

"The complainant, the Attorney General or the Commission
may sccure enforcement of the order of the Commission or other
appropriate relief by the [Commonwealth Court or by the] court of
common pleas of the county within which the hearing was held, "
(Emphasis added.) ‘
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COUNTER-STATIMENT OF THE

QUESTIONS INVOLVED

ra
Whether the,Cbmmgssion's Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of lLaw are in accordance with Law

and are supported by substantial evidence?

Whether the Commission's Final Order is within

its authority to remedy unlawful discrimination?

Whether the Millcreek Education Association is
an indispensable party to these proceedings and
‘the Commission erred in entering its Final Order

against the School District of Millcreek oniy?

Whether the Commission erred in entering its

Final Order on a Sunday?




COUNTER-ILSTORY OF THI CASH

This case arises on the Complaint of Linda Jean Richards (here-
inafter "Complainant'), dated March 5, 1973, and amended September 5,
1973, alléging that the School District of thé Township of Millereek
(hereinafter '"Millecreek”) violated Section 5(a) of the-Pennsylvania%
Human Relations Act, Act of October 27, 1955, P.L. 744 as ameﬁded‘

43 P.S. §955(é) (hereinafter 'the Act"), by refusing to pay her éQual 
supplemental wageé for coaching Girls' Varsity Tennis as paid to the
male coach of Boys' Varsity Tennis, on account of her sex, female.

The Complaint further alleged that Millecreek discriminated agalnst

all female athletic coaches in the payment of supplemental wages.
Commission staff conducted an 1nvestlgat10n into the allegations of
the Complaint, found probable cause, and attempted to settle the
matter by means of conference, conciliation and: persuasion. Concil-
iation failing, a hearing on the merits of the complaint was conducted
on July 29, 1975, before a panel of three Commissioners, and the fol-
lowing facts were established:

Compléinant, a femaie physical education teacher at Millcreek's

McDowell High School, was appointed to the position of Girls' Varsity

Tennis Coach in September, 1972. (R. 2la, 23a, lc) At the time of

her application, she requested credit for her three yvears experience
coaching Girls' Tennis when it was an extra-mural sport. (R. 22a,
23a, lc) This request was denied and Complainant was appointed as

first year Varsiﬁy Ternis Coach. (R. 232) The supplemental wage

[ ‘ ;tlz-;i ‘ ;{-]\;f.i:éi EENE.



scale for all coaching positions in the school district was contained
in the contract between -Millerecek and the Millerecek Education Associ-
ation, effective July 1, 1972 through June 30, 1974. Under the,terms‘;
- of that centract, Complainéngmreceived an annual supplemental wage of
$250.00, while the first year male ccach of Boys' Varsity_Tennis,re:
ceived an annual supplemental wage of $550.00. (R. 27c¢) Complainaﬁt
objected to the difference in compensation pald to male and femaié‘
coaches and requested the Millcreek School Board to adjust her salary
to an amount equal to the Boys' Varsity Tennis Coach. (R. 23a, 24a,
2¢) This request was denied, and the Complainant signed a contract
for.the coaching position at $250.00, "under protest.”™ (R. 24a,'30)
In September, 1973, Complainant was again appointed to the position
of Girls' Varsity Tennis Coach and received an annuai supplemental
wage of $320.00. The second year male coach of Boys' Varsity Tennis
received an annual supplemental wage of $630.00. (R. 28c¢)

The duties and responsibilities of the male and female tennis
coaches were the same. In addition to competitive pléy, both Com-
plainant and the Boys' Varsity Tennis Coach performed the duties set
forth in the "Coaches Handbook', which applied to all coaches regard-
less of sex. (R. 26a, 5%9a, 82a, 83a, 7¢) During the 1972-1973
school year, the Girls' Varsity Tennis team played twenty-two (22)
competitive matches. (R. 94a, 98a) 1In 1973-1974, the girls played
eight (&) matches in the fall and participated in the (PIAA) District
and State Championships in the spring, while the boys played fourteen

(14) matches in the spring. (R. 3la, 32a, 74a, 95a, 99a) The student




participation in Poys' and Girls’' Tennis was approximately equal,
In 1973-1974, an estimated sixtcuen (16) pirls and fifteen (15) boys
participated in Varsity Tennis. (R. 24¢) ,

The coaches of Giris'“HArsity Basketball and Boys' Varsity
Basketball also performed the same duties, as contained in the
"Coaches Handbook'. (R. 24c) However, under the terms of the con-" .
tract, the supplemental wage rate for the female Head Basketbali 
Coach was from $250.00 to $400.00, while the supplemental wage rate
for the male Head Basketball Coach was from $1,300 to $1,900.
(R. 27c, 28¢) |

The Commission concluded that the disparity in wages paid to
male and female coaches for performing substantially similar work
constituﬁed unlawful discrimination on the basis of sex. The Com-
mission awarded back pay to the Complainant in the amount of $610.00,
the difference between her supplemental wage and that paid to the
male Tennis Coach, and ordered Millcreek to equalize the supplemental
wage scales for male and female athletics coaches.

The case now comes before this Honorable Court on the appeal

of Millcreek from the Final Order of the Commission, dated March 28, -
1976. |




ARGUMENT JOR APPELLEE

A. The Commission's Findings of Fact and Conclusions
of Law are in accordance with law and are supported °

by substantial evidence.

An adjudication of the Commission may be set aside or mo&iﬁied
only where such adjudication is in violation of the constitutional
rights of the appellant, or is not in accordance with law, or where
the findings of fact necessary to‘support the adjudication are '"not
supported by substantial evidence." Administrative Agency Law, Act

of June &4, 1975, P.L. 1388, 71 P.S. 81710.44; Pennsylvania Human Re-

lations Commission v. Chester Schocl District, 427 Pa. 157, 233 A.2d

290 (1967). The Commission's Findings of Fact in the instant case
are well supported by competent evidence and must be sustained.

It is undisputed that the supplemental wage paid to the Com-
plainant as coach of the Giris' Varsity Tennis Coach was $300.00
and $310.00 less per year than the supplemental wage paid to the male
coach of Boys' Varsity Tennis. (R. 27c¢, 28c¢) In determining whether
this disparity in compensation constituted unlawful discrimination
on the basis of sex, the Commission considered evidence pertaining
to the actual duties and responsibilities of the male and female
‘Tennis Coaches. Complainant testified that her duties and responsi-
bilities were set forth on page 2 ¢f the ''Coaches Handbook! which
was distributed to all athletic coaches, male and female, in Mill-

creek. (R. 26a, 7c¢) Kathleen Guinn, the Commission's investigator,




testillicd that the "Coaches Handbnaok' wasg provi@ed to her during the
course of investigation as a job description for all coaching posi-
" tions. (R. 5%a) Ronald L Manchester, Supervisor of Physical Educa—<v
tion and Athletics, was called by Millcreek and testified that athlet-
ics coaches were required to take care of equipment, make sure members
have proper physical examinations and parental perm1551on and. other
duties as set forth in the '"Coaches Hancbook." (R. 82a, 83a) _Mr.
Manchester also testified that there were no particular requirements
as to practice time and that he képt no records of actual practice
time. (R. 63a, 83a) No evidence was presented to indicate any dif-
ference iﬁ the actual job performance of male and female‘coaches, and
the Commission correctly concluded that the duties and responsibilities
of each were substantially equal. |

The Commission also heard evidence pertaining to the actual
competitive play of the Girls' and Boys' Varsity Tennis Teams. In
1972-1973, the Girls' Varsity Tennis‘Team played twenty-two (22)
matches, as compared to the Boys' Varsity Tennis Team's sixteen (16)
matches. (R. 94a, 98a) In 1973-1974, the Girls' Team played eight
(8) matches during the season and two (2) championship matches, while
the Boys' Team played fourteen (14) matches. (R. 3la, 32a, 47a, 95a,
9%9a) Estimated student participation for 1973-1974 showed sixteen
(L6) girls and fifteen (15) boys playing Varsity Tennis. (R. 24c)
Student participation and competitcive play in Girls' Varsity Basketball
and Boys' Varsity Basketball was also substantially equal. (R. 24c¢)

However, the supplemental wage paid to the female Head Basketball




Coach wias from 51,200 to 51,900 ifess Chan the wape paid to the male
Head Baskethall Coach. (R, 27¢, 28¢) On this basis, the Commission
concluded that the male and female coaches performed substantia}ly

the same or similar jobs.. The evidence presented amply supports

this finding.

‘Millcreek attempted to justify the disparity in supplemental- ..
wage pald to male and female coaches on the grounds that the gifls'
tennis program was a 'mew sport, a growing sport,' whereas, the boys'
program had been in existence for.ten or fifteen years. (R. 60a) A
similar justification was asserted for the difference in thersupple—
mental wage paid the male and female basketball coaches. (R. 6la)
Millcreek raises for the first time in its Brief the explanation that
‘the dispérity in wages was based upon differences in the 'scope" of
the male and female athletic programs, however, there is no evidence
on the record to support such a finding. On the contrary, the Girls'
Varsity Tennis Team played more competitive matches than the Boys'
Team in 1972-1973, and qualified one of its members for the PIAA State
Championships in 1973-1974. The only apparent difference between.the
“boys' and girls' tennis programs was the sex of the pérticipants.
Based upon these Findings of Fact, which are well supported

by substantial evidence, the Commission entered the following Conclu-

sions of Law:




Respondent Millereek Scliool District's compensation
of Complainant as coach ot the Cirls' Varsity Tennis
Team by a supplemental wape that was subscantially less
than the comwpensation paid the male Tennis Coach for
performing a substantially similar job because of har
sex, female, constitutes a violation of Section 5(a)

of the Pennsylvania Human Relaticns Act.

Respondent Millecreek School District's compensa-
tion of all female coaches by a supplemental wage that
was substantially less than the compensation paid their ..
male counterparts for performing a substantially same
or similar job because of their sex, female, consti-
tutes a violation of Section 5{(2) of the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Act. (R. 9a) (Emphasis Supplied)

The Commission's interpretation and application of Section 5(a)
of the Act is fully consistent with applicable statutory and case law.
Discrimination in compensation on the basis of sex is prohibited by
the Equal Pay Act of 1963, 29 U.S.C. 206(d) and by Title VII of the
Civil Rights -Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000e, et seq., as ﬁell as by
Section 5(a) of the Act. The principles of law governing so-called
"equal pay" cases have been well established, and the Commission
correctly relied upon this authority in determining that Millecreek
violated Section 5(a) of the Act, under the facts of this case.

Under the Equal Pay Act of 1963, it is unlawful to pay different
wages to males and females performing ”substantiélly equal' work, un-
.less such paymeﬁt is made pursuant to a seniority system, a merit
system, a system which measures earnings by quantity or quality of
production or a differential based on any other factor other than sex.

29 U.S.C. ZOG(d)l It 1s nol necessary that the jobs in question be

lThe Lqual Pay Law, Act of December 17, 1859, P.L. 1913, as
amended, 43 P.S. 336.1 et seq., (1975 Supp.), also prohibits discrim-
inatory wages or compensation, however, there are few reported cases.
The 1968 Amendment adopting the language of the Federal Equal Pay Act

suggests an intention by the General Assembly to apply the federal
standard. -
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identical in cvery respect:.  Incidental variation in tasks or respon-
sibilities cannot defeat a claim lor equal pay. What is required is
that the jobs in question be shown to be "substantially ‘equal' Shultz wv.

Wheaton Glass Co., 421 F.2d 259 (3d Cir. 1970); Shultz v. American Can

Co., 424 ¥.2d 356 (8th Cir. 1970); Hodgson v. Fairmont Supply Co., 45@

F.24 490 (4th Cir. 1972); Hodgson v. Corning Glass Worké, 474 FJZd 490

(2d Cir. 1973), aff'd, 414 U.S. 1110 (1974).
The principle of equal pay for "substantially equal" work has
alsc been applied in cases brought under Title VII of the Civil Rights

Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq., Laffey, et al. v. Northwest Air-

lines, Inc., 366 F. Supp. 763 (D.D.C. 1973) Federal courts have rec-

ognized that the Equal Pay Act and Title VII provide concurrent reme-
dies, and an employee may elect to sue under either for conduct covered.

by both. Olson v. Rembrandt Printing Co., 375 F. Supp. 413 (E.D.Mo.

1974); Piva v. Xerox Corp., 376 F. Supp. 242 (N.D.Cal. 1974).

| In the instant case, the Commission determined that Millecreek
violated Section 5(a) of the Act by paying the female athletic coaches
a lesser wage than the males for performing "substantially equal' work.

This determination is fully in accordance with law and should be upheld.




i;“&:.’_l‘

male Tennisg Coach. 4an award of back pay is clearly authorized by

Section § of the Act, which specifically Provides that the Commission

may issue orders requiring.

authority, ag €hunciated ip Pennsylvanig Human Relationsg Commission V.
Alto-Reste Cemetary Par N., 435 pa. 124, 306 A.2d 881 (1973), and

most recently in Pennsxiggnla Human Relgplons Commission V. FreeEort

Areg School District, Mo, 24 March Term, 197¢ (Opinion filed, July 6,
1976 ) |

-10-




Midland Tleiphts Homes v. Pennsylvania tuman Relations Commingion,

17 Pa.Cmwlth. 563 (1975), cited by Millercek, involved an order for com-
pensatory damages forx refusal to rent commercial housing under Spction'}
5(h) of the Act, and is‘cléériy not applicable to this case.

The Commission's Final Order is thus within its broad remedigl
authority to remedy unlawful discrimination and fully in accordlwithr

applicable law. This Honorable Court should affirm.

-11-
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C.o The Millercek Mdueabion Associantion is not
an indispensable pavty Lo these proceedings
and the Commission did not err in entering

its Final Order against the School District

of Millcreek only.

An indispensable party is one whose rights are so directly

connected with and affected by the litigation that he must be a pérty-

of record to protect his rights. Columbia Gas Iransmission Corp v.

Diamond Fuel Co., Pa. , 347 A.2d 788 (1975) The Millereek
Education Association is not an indispensable party in the instant
case, simply because the wage rates at issue were established by a

collective bargaining agreement between the Association and Millcreck.

In Dunlop v. Beloit College; F. Supp. (W.D.Wis. 1976);

L1 EPD 10, 763, the court refused to dismiss an equal pay suit for fail-

ure to join a union. The wage rates alleged to be discriminatory, were
contained in a collective bargaining agreement and the defendant assert-
ed that the union actively and knowingly participated in the negotiation

cf a discriminatory agreement. Nonetheless, the court held that the

union was not an indispensable party.

In Phillips v. Carborundum Co., F. Supp. (W.D.N.Y.

W0

1273); © ZPD 581%, the company sought jcinder of the union as an indis-
pensable party in an equal pay case because the challenged rates were
part of the union contract. The court held that relief could be

granted in the union's absence and denied joinder. Similarly, in

-12-




Hlodgson v. Bd. of d ., Parsippany -Troy llills, 344 F. Supp. 79

(D.C.H.J. 1972) joinder of the union in an equal pay case was denied.
And, in one of the few cases under Pennsylvania's Equal‘Pay Law,s pre-
liminary objections for failure to join the union were dismissed.

Dougherty v. Continental Can Co., 407 Pa. 264 (1962)

This Honorable Court has also upheld Orders for back pay-
entered against an employer where the wage scales found to be discrim~

~inatory were part of a union contract. Pennsylvania Human Relations

Commission v. Hempfield Township, supra. Clearly, the Commission did

not err in the instant case in entering its Final Order against

Millcreek only.

-13-




Do The Commission did not err in entering its

Final Order on a Sunday.

Millcreek's spurious assertion that the Commission's determin-
ation is void because rendered on a Sunday requires little discussion.
After a full evidentiary hearing on the merits of the instant Complaint,
the Commission met at its regularly scheduled meeting, considere& the
recommendation of the Hearing Commissioners and voted to enter =z fiﬁd-
ing of unlawful discrimination. The action of the Commission in this
regard is not prohibited by 44 P.S. 81, and should not be overturned.
The Commission has not executed upon such Final Order, nor issued‘any
form of legal process in connection therewith. The mere entry of the

Final Order on Sunday, March 28, 1976, under these circumstances was

proper and valid.

-14-




CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Commission respectfully

requests this Honorable“Coﬁrt_po affirm the Final Order of the

Commission,. dated March 28, 1976.

Respectfully submitted:

//J/ /u/mﬁ// j -

Kathellne H. Fein

Assistant General Counsel

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS
COMMISSION

4 Smithfield Street - Room 810

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15222

(4123 565-7567
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